zeppelin universität

zwischen Wirtschaft Kultur Politik

Handbook of Modules

for the Study Program Master of Arts in International Relations & Global Politics (IRGP)

(Study Start from Fall Term 2021)



zeppelin universität

2021 I Zeppelin Universität gemeinnützige GmbH Last update: 11/2023

Table of Contents

MANDATORY MODULES	4
Module 23306 Research Methods	
Module 243022-6 International Relations	
Module 243021-6 Global Governance	
Module 243164-6 War & Peace	
Module 243163-6 European Institutions	
ELECTIVE MODULES IN THE CORE AREA OF IRGP	9
Module 243143-6 Democracy&Justice in International Politics	
Module 243041-6 International Law	
Module 243165/6/7-6 Selected Topics: Politics International Relations & Global Pol	
Module 243152-6 Decisions, Games and Negotiations	
OTHER ELECTIVE MODULES	13
Module 243111-6 Comparative Public Policy Analysis	
Module 243171-6 Human Decisionmaking	
Module 233021-6 Comparative Politics & Institutions	
Module 243151-6 Political Behavior & Public Opinion	
Module 233022-6 Modern Political Theory	
Module 243155/6-6 Selected Topics: Political Norms, Institutions & Behavior I & II	
Module 243153-6 Inequality and Justice	
Module 243072-6 Governance & Controlling of Public Sector Organizations	
Module 243113-6 Computational Political Science	
Module 243114-6 Applied Data Analysis	
Module 24353 Elinor-Ostrom-Project	
Module 12344 Advanced Methods	
MASTER PHASE	25
Module 55000 Final Module	
ZU Plus	26
Module 11001 Workshop Fundamentals of Entrepreneurship	
Module 11001 Workshop Creativity & Performativity	

MANDATORY MODULES

	Module 23306 Research Methods					
MA	Semester 1-2	6 h/week	12 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 72/178		
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar			
Event Type		Obligator	y ⊠ Elective □			
Period		2 Semester				
Rotation		yearly □ per semester ⊠				
Examinations						
Scope and Length of Examinations						
Module Responsibility with		Chair of Political Sociology				
Prerequisites						
Use of Module		Mandator	y Module MA IRGP			

Content

The aim of the module is to expand existing basic skills in empirical methods. To do this, on the one hand the scientific theoretical basics of empirical research are discussed, with a special focus on epistemological problems as they can be found in different research approaches and different schools of thought, such as the so-called "quantitative" and "qualitative" research. Throughout the whole sub-module, an integrative viewpoint is adopted, i.e. the point of view that successful research in social sciences requires knowledge and understanding that relate to both research traditions.

Qualification Objectives

The students get to know the prevailing approaches in the theory of science and in research design, can evaluate them regarding specific research questions, and apply them in their own research. The students understand the different methodological approaches of social research—and can apply them to their own research questions.

- Agresti, Alan, and Barabara Finlay. 2009. *Statistical Methods for the Social Sciences*. 4th Edition. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Prentice Hall.
- Box-Steffensmeier, Janet M., Henry E. Brady, and David Collier. 2008. *The Oxford Handbook of Political Methodology*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Chalmers, Allan F. 2013. What is this Thing Called Science? 4th ed. Maidenhead: Open University Press & McGraw-Hill.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C 233061 Research Design & Methods I	6	3
C 233062 Research Design & Methods II	6	3

	Module 243022-6 International Relations					
MA Semester 1 3 h/week 6 ECTS Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123						
Teaching Methods		Seminar				
Event Type		Obligator	y ⊠ Elective □			
Period		1 Semester				
Rotation		yearly ⊠ per semester □				
Examinations		Paper or Written Exam				
Scope and Length of Examinations						
Module Responsibility with		Chair of International Relations				
		Chair of Global Governance				
Prerequis	Prerequisites					
Use of M	Use of Module			y Module MA IRGP		

How can we explain political dynamics between and beyond states? In this module, students get introduced to key concepts of International Relations theories. It deals with why "theory" is important in shaping our thinking about policy options. We discuss different theoretical perspectives on concepts such as anarchy, sovereignty, diplomacy, law and normativity. Students apply these concepts and theoretical insights to current issues in international politics. Are we facing a new nuclear arms race? How can we make sense of the lack of cooperation on climate change? Is diplomacy a peaceful means of world politics or does it facilitate armed conflict? Can international law constrain state behaviour? In discussing these questions students learn how to use theoretical tools for the analysis of world politics and how to criticise theoretical claims and political events.

Qualification Objectives

Students should be able to

discuss the role of theory in understanding international politics;
apply theoretical assumptions to empirical problems and cases;
critically analyse the limits of specific theoretical schools.

Literature

Dunne, Tim / Kurki, Milja / Smith, Steve (2013, eds.): International Relations Theories: Discipline and Diversity, Oxford: Oxford University Press

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C International Relations	6	3

				zeppelin uni
	Mod	ule 24302	1-6 Glo	oal Governance
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123
Teach	ing Methods		Seminar	
Event	Туре		Obligator	y ⊠ Elective □
Period			1 Semest	er
Rotati	on		yearly ⊠	per semester 🗆
Exami	nations		Exam or \	Written Exam
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations		
Modu	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of C	Blobal Governance
Prerec	_l uisites			
Use of	Module		Mandato	y Module MA IRGP
- docu norms state a This n govern policy variety policy	mented, for instar and regulations. actors, such as NG nodule covers cur nance in different processes as wel of empirical case	nce, by the in Such relation of The Such relation of The Such relations of The Such rela	ncreasing nons often in the standard of the standard of the modern of the standard of the stan	ate and the effects thereof on globalule analyzes institutions, actors and To this aim, the module draws on a ent, resource management or healthetions of authority and legitimacy o
Qualif	ication Objectives			
Stude 	are able to und	obal governa operience i	ance; n applying	central conceptual and theoretica

- Held, David/Andrew McGrew (Hg.) (2002): Governing Globalization. Power, Authority and Global Governance. Cambridge: Polity Press.
- Avant, Deborah D.; Finnemore, Martha; Sell, Susan K. (Hg.) (2010): Who Governs the Globe? Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Zürn, Michael (2013): "Globalization and Global Governance." In Handbook of International Relations, edited by Walter Carlsnaes, Thomas Risse, and Beth Simmons, 401-25. London: Sage.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Global Governance	6	3

	Module 243164-6 War & Peace						
MA	MA Semester 2/4 3 h/week 6 ECTS Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123						
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar				
Event	Туре		Obligator	y ⊠ Elective □			
Period		1 Semester					
Rotation		yearly ⊠ per semester □					
Examinations		Paper or Written Exam					
Scope and Length of Examinations							
Module Responsibility with		Chair of International Relations					
Prerequisites							
Use of Module		Mandato	ry Module MA IRGP				
	Content Violent conflicts are getting more and more complex. We observe a rise of civil wars						

Violent conflicts are getting more and more complex. We observe a rise of civil wars as well as a rise of activities of transnational violent actors. Technical advances in the weapons industry and digitalization pose new threats. We seem to be moving back to old-school block confrontations of great. Simultaneously, international institutions organize more complex multilateral peacekeeping and peacebuilding activities, and wars get more regulated, based, for example, on the introduction of a responsibility to protect (R2P) or the establishment of the International Criminal Court (ICC).

This module tries to make sense of these different observations. It will give an overview of central categories and controversies in the field of Peace and Conflict Studies. We will think about concepts like war, conflict, violence, and peace and analyze the theoretical assumptions linked to these terms. We will also discuss different forms of violent conflicts as well as major theoretical explanations for such conflicts. Last, but not least, we will deal with different international strategies of peacebuilding as well as the international regulation of violent conflicts.

Qualification Objectives

After participating in this class, students should be able

- to distinguish and critically discuss basic concepts in the field of Peace and Conflict Studies;
- to analyze empirical phenomena of violent conflict and to link them to theoretical perspectives;
- to critically discuss different theoretical perspectives in Peace and Conflict Studies.

- Barash, D. P. & Webel, C. (2014). Peace and Conflict Studies, 3rd edition. Los Angeles, CA: SAGE.
- Schlotter, P. & Wisotzki, S. (Eds.) (2011). Friedens- und Konfliktforschung. Baden-Baden: Nomos.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C War & Peace	6	3

MA Semester 2/4 3 h/week 6 ECTS Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123 Teaching Methods Seminar Event Type Obligatory ⋈ Elective □ Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly ⋈ per semester □ Examinations Scope and Length of Examinations		Module 243163-6 European Institutions					
Event Type Obligatory ⊠ Elective □ Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly ⊠ per semester □ Examinations Scope and Length of Examinations	MA	MA I Semester 2/4 I 3 n/week h FUIS					
Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly ⊠ per semester □ Examinations Scope and Length of Examinations	Teaching Methods		Seminar				
Rotation yearly ⊠ per semester □ Examinations Scope and Length of Examinations	Event Type		Obligator	y ⊠ Elective □			
Examinations Scope and Length of Examinations	Period		1 Semester				
Scope and Length of Examinations	Rotation		yearly ⊠ per semester □				
	Examinations						
Madula Bassassibility with Chair of Cassassative Baltina	Scope and Length of Examinations						
windule Responsibility with Chair of Comparative Politics	Module Responsibility with		Chair of Comparative Politics				
Prerequisites	Prerequisites						
Use of Module Mandatory Module MA IRGP	Use of	Use of Module			y Module MA IRGP		

The institutions of the European Union (EU) constitute a unique, supranational political system. Focusing on different pieces of literature, specifically on theories of regional integration and EU decision-making, this module will put an emphasis on the European Institutions – namely the European Parliament, the European Council, the Council of Europe and the European Commission, as well as the Court of Justice of the European Union and the European Central bank. Their functioning and their exchange relationship will be analysed systematically. This module will furthermore examine the interactions between said European Institutions and the national institutions of the EU member countries in various policy areas.

Qualification Objectives

Students will gain a broad overview of the political system of the European Union and can assess tasks and functions of central institutions of the EU. Furthermore, they will be familiar with crucial theories of regional integration, of the EU-decision-making-process and can apply said theories in independent analyses of empirical case studies.

- Dermot Hodson & John Peterson (eds.), 2017: The Institutions of the European Union (4th ed.). Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Nugent, Neill, 2017: The Government and Politics of the European Union (8th ed.). Houndmills: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Saurugger, Sabine (2013): Theoretical Approaches to European Integration. Houndmills: Palgrave Macmillan.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C European Institutions	6	3

ELECTIVE MODULES IN THE CORE AREA OF IRGP1

Мо	Module 243143-6 Democracy&Justice in International Politics							
MA	Semester 2/4	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Se 27/123	lf Study (i	n hrs):		
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar					
Event ⁻	Гуре		Obligator	y Elective	\boxtimes			
Period			1 Semest	er				
Rotatio	n		yearly 🗵	per semester				
Exami	nations		Paper					
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations						
Modul	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of I	nternational Relatio	ns			
Prereq	uisites							
Use of Conter	Module		Elective N	Nodule MA IRGP				
Which possib democ parlian organiz such a normar sugges	state: how can a legitimate and just order be organized beyond national borders? Which moral points of reference should be applied? Which institutional designs are possible? The module covers cosmopolitan and communitarian approaches to democracy and justice and discusses concrete options of implementation; e.g. parliamentary assemblies and deliberative civil society fora in international organizations, the right to vote for migrants or global redistribution mechanisms such as a financial transaction tax or fair supply chains. The module combines normative questions of duties, rights and responsibility in the global sphere with suggestions regarding their political implementation.							
 Qualification Objectives Students are able to understand and present different theoretical approaches to democracy and justice; are able to critically assess different suggestions regarding their implementation; have gained experience in applying the conceptual and theoretical approaches to different empirical policy fields based on literature research, verbal as well as textual analysis. Literature Wilde, Pieter de; Koopmans, Ruud; Merkel, Wolfgang; Strijbis, Oliver; Zürn, Michael (2019): The Struggle Over Borders: Cosmopolitanism and Communitarianism. Cambridge University Press. Kuper, Andrew (2004): Democracy Beyond Borders. Justice and Representation in Global Institutions. Oxford: Oxford University Press. 								
	s in the Module			,	ECTS	h/week		

¹ Elective Modules totalling 12 ECTS can be replaced with an internship or modules from other ZU MA-programs. Alternatively, elective modules totalling 18 ECTS can be replaced with a research project (Module 24353 Elinor Ostrom Project).

C Democracy & Justice in International Politics

3

6

zeppelin unive							
	Module 243041-6 International Law						
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123			
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar				
Event	Гуре		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠			
Period			1 Semest	er			
Rotatio	on		yearly ⊠	per semester 🛚			
Exami	nations		Exam				
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations	90 minutes				
Module Responsibility with			Chair of Public Law Tax & European Law & Regulatory Law				
Prerequisites							
Use of	Module		Elective Module MA IRGP				
Conter	nt						
What are the rules under which governments work together? Which regulatory systems exist besides the national or the European legal system? And what rights can individuals derive from these systems at the international level? These are only three questions intended to highlight the prominent role of international law. International law is the legal link between states, institutions and private individuals. The course "International Law" provides the basics of this extensive field of law. The following topics are of particular importance: Legal sources of international law							

	Legal sources of international law
1	Cubicate of international law lines

Subjects of international law (including states, I.O., individuals)

Principles of diplomatic protection

Sovereignty, State Immunity and Responsibility

Human rights protection and international humanitarian law

Qualification Objectives

The students

- know legal sources and basic concepts of international law; they are able to apply them in practical cases.
- know the structure and organization of the UNO and are able to assess its options for action and those of its staff members.
- are familiar with the instruments of international human rights protection and can assess their significance for the international community and the international legal system.
- can discuss current issues of international law and integrate them into the general international legal discourse.
- can assess the extent to which international law is a tool in the areas of international relations, development policy, and security.

Literature

dtv Text "Völkerrechtliche Verträge, 15. Aufl., 2019

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C International Law	6	3

Module 243165/6/7-6 Selected Topics: Politics International						
	Re	lations &	Global Po	olitics I, II & III		
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Se 27/123	lf Study (i	n hrs):
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar			
Event 7	Гуре		Obligator	y Elective	\boxtimes	
Period			1 Semest	er		
Rotatio	n		yearly 🗵	per semester		
Examir	nations		Exam or f	Paper		
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations				
Module	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of I	nternational Relatio	ns	
Prerequisites						
Use of	Module		Elective N	Nodule MA IRGP		
instance, the role of international organizations and the United Nations? How can we manage international conflicts and crises? How do protest and resistance shape global governance? Other issues of interest include new forms of international cooperation on challenges such as environmental protection, migration and trade. Students can take up to three ST-courses in the field of IRGP. Qualification Objectives Understand and critically assess basic concepts and literature in the respective issue areas, Understand and evaluate practical problems in each issue area and present them based on literature reviews, verbal as well as textual analysis. Understand theoretical concepts and theories and analytically apply them to						
Literatı	empirical exampl u re	165.				
Park, Susan (2018): International Organisations and Global Problems: Theories and Explanations. Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press. Jönsson, Christer; Tallberg, Jonas (Hg.) (2010): Transnational Actors in Global Governance: Patterns, Explanations and Implications. Houndmills, Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan. Stephen, Matthew D., and Michael Zürn, eds. (2019): Contested world orders: Rising powers, non-governmental organizations, and the politics of authority beyond the nation-state. Oxford, United Kingdom: Oxford University Press.						
Course	s in the Module				ECTS	h/week
C Selec	C Selected Topics: Politics International Relations & Global 6 3					3

	Module 243152-6 Decisions, Games and Negotiations						
МА	Semester 2/4	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Se 27/123	lf Study (i	n hrs):	
Teaching	g Methods		Seminar				
Event Ty	/pe		Obligator	y Elective	\boxtimes		
Period			1 Semest	er			
Rotation	<u> </u>		yearly 🗵	per semester			
Examina	ntions						
Scope a	nd Length of Ex	aminations					
Module	Responsibility v	vith	Chair of P	olitical Science			
Prerequi	sites						
Use of Module				Nodule MA IRGP			
Content							
	ninar covers the nd bargaining tl			concepts of decis	ion theor	y, game	
C A S N	Basic concepts like preferences, utility and strategies Classic concepts of equilibria Advanced concepts of equilibria: subgame perfections, bayesian equilibria Sequential game theory Nash- and Rubinstein-Bargaining Solutions Experimental game theory						
Qualifica	ation Objectives						
Students learn to interpret the concepts of game theory and bargaining theory as solution concepts for specific problem constellations. Also they learn to reflect critically about their appropriateness.							
Literatur	е						
[Dixit, Avinash /B	ael/Elion S	olan/Shmu	ne Art of Strategy. el Zamir (2013):		: Norton Theory.	
Courses	in the Module				ECTS	h/week	
C Decisi	C Decisions, Games and Negotiation				6	3	

OTHER ELECTIVE MODULES

ı	Module 243111-6 Comparative Public Policy Analysis					
MA	Semester 1/3	3 /hweek	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Se 27/123	lf Study (i	n hrs):
Teaching	Methods		Seminar			
Event Ty	ре		Obligator	y □ Elective	\boxtimes	
Period			1 Semest	er		
Rotation			yearly ⊠	per semester		
Examina	tions					
Scope ar	d Length of Ex	aminations				
Module F	Responsibility v	vith	Chair of F	olitical Science		
Prerequis	sites					
Use of M	odule		Elective N	Nodule MA IRGP		
Content						
The module deals with the systematic research of comparative policies on an international level. Comparative political research will focus specifically on following scientific questions: Why do policies vary between countries and within those countries over						
In W	•			ead from one coun olicies play in the s	•	
regulatio		or market,	taxation	ning various polic and transfer payn	-	
Qualifica	tion Objectives					
of compa They will adoption	The students will familiarize themselves with fundamental methods and techniques of comparative policy analysis and learn to apply them to specific political problems. They will get to know the political background conditions needed for the emergence, adoption and transfer of policies and learn to estimate the successful realization of specific policies.					
Literature						
Ha Kr Pe	andbook of Con nill, Christoph/ (nparative Po Christian Ada Change an	olicy Analys am/ Steffer d Coverge	el Howlett (Hrsg.) sis.Routledge n Hurka (hrsg.) (201 nce of Moral Regu	5): On the	Road to
Courses	in the Module				ECTS	h/week
	C Comparative Public Policy Analysi				6	3

	Module	e 243171-6	6 Huma	n Decisionmaking		
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123		
Teaching Methods		Seminar				
Event Type		Obligatory □ Elective ⊠				
Period	Period		1 Semester			
Rotatio	Rotation			yearly ⊠ per semester □		
Examir	Examinations					
Scope	Scope and Length of Examinations					
Module Responsibility with		Chair of Social & Economic Psychology				
Prereq	Prerequisites					
Use of Module			Elective N	lodule MA IRGP		

We will explore psychological processes of decisions in general and more specifically in the legal domain. After an introduction to important theories and models and empirical findings on human decisions and their weaknesses, we will start to discuss decisions by algorithms. Since nowadays, governments are increasingly interested in the use of algorithms in decision making, we will delve deeper into the literature on costs and benefits of using AI systems especially in the legal system.

Qualification Objectives

Students will understand the basics of human decision making and automatic decisions by algorithms. In addition, they learn to reflect on the fairness of algorithmic decisions and how to test the quality of an algorithm. They will also understand what Big Data are.

Literature

Literature will be announced at the beginning of the semester.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Human Decisionmaking	6	3

	Module 233021-6 Comparative Politics & Institutions						
MA	Semester 1	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123			
Teaching	g Methods		Seminar				
Event Ty	ре		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠			
Period			1 Semest	er			
Rotation			yearly ⊠ per semester □				
Examinations							
Scope a	nd Length of Ex	aminations					
Module	Responsibility v	vith	Chair of Political Science				
Prerequi	sites						
Use of M	lodule		Elective Module MA IRGP				
Content							
the insti structure contents thus pro	tutional and thes (polity and political proportion)	e actor-cent olitics dime grams (polic ehensive o	ered dime nsions), as y analysis) verview of	strative comparisons and covers both nsions of social and political power well as the policy dimension of the . In its overall perspective the module the main governance models in a ational comparison.			
O!!f!	stian Objectives						

Qualification Objectives

Thus, the students are enabled to analyze and evaluate converging and diverging developments of governance systems. They can critically evaluate policy transfers and the diffusion of political solutions in their scope, and can analyze them on a sound methodological basis.

Boix, Charles/ Susan C. Stokes (Hrsg.)(2007): The Oxford Handbook of Com-
parative Politics. Oxford

- Clark, William Roberts/ Matthew R. Golder/ Sona Nadenichek Golder (Hrsg.) (2017): Principles of Comparative Politics. Sage
- McCormick, John/ Rod Hague / Martin Harrop (Hrsg.)(2019): Comparative Government and Politics: An Introduction. Red Globe Press.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Comparative Politics & Institutions	6	3

	Module 2431	151-6 Pol	itical Bel	navior & Public Opinion			
MA	Semester 2/4	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123			
Teachi	Teaching Methods						
Event ⁻	Гуре		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠			
Period	Period			1 Semester			
Rotatio	Rotation			yearly ⊠ per semester □			
Examinations							
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations					
Modul	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of Political Sociology				
			Chair of Political Science				
Prerequisites							
Use of Module			Elective Module MA IRGP				

Building on the Module "Research Design and Methods", this course focuses on topics in political behavior and public opinion, including electoral behavior. It is concerned with the ways in which citizens form opinions, how they process political information and how they make voting choices. Accordingly, the topics of courses in this module include political Culture and political socialization, patterns of opinion formation and ideological thinking, and patterns of political participation and patterns of voting. Courses in this module provide an overview of the respective topic and introduce to the current state of research. When appropriate, the topics are illustrated by current affairs, such as Bundestag elections, elections abroad, or major political movements.

Qualification Objectives

After completing the module, students are expected to be familiar with the basic concepts and theoretical approaches relevant to a specific research area on political attitudes and political behavior and to know the main findings of the relevant research literature and are able to assess their implications. They should be able to choose topics for their master thesis and to take the first steps toward independent research.

Literature

Dalton, Russel, and Hans-Dieter Klingemann. 2007. *The Oxford Handbook of Political Behaviour*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Political Behavior & Public Opinion	6	3

zeppelin uni							
	Module 233022-6 Modern Political Theory						
МА	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123			
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar				
Event	Туре		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠			
Period			1 Semest	er			
Rotatio	on		yearly ⊠	per semester 🛚			
Exami	nations						
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations					
Modul	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of Political Science				
Prereq	uisites						
Use of	Module		Elective Module MA IRGP				
Conte	nt						
their r		rd to specif		porary political theories and discusses and politics. The seminar focuses			
Egalitarian Liberalism Libertarianism Communitarianism Theories of Deliberative Democracy							
These theories deliver the theoretical foundation for the discussion of relevant practical issues in politics as redistribution, just taxation, national and international public health, the significance of political and social rights, immigration and asylum, secession and humanitarian military interventions and poor economics.							
	cation Objectives						
		•		logical structure of the fundamental y and philosophy and to apply them			

concepts of different strands of political theory and philosophy and to apply them to the normative discussion of practical problems in the sphere of politics.

Colin Farelly (2014): Contemporary political theory. A Reader. Sage
Will Kymlicka (2001): Contemporary political philosophy. Oxford Univ. Press

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Modern Political Theory	6	3

	Module 243	155/6-6 5	Selected ¹	Topics: Political Norms,	
		Institutio	ns & Beh	avior I & II	
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123	
Teachi	ng Methods		Seminar		
Event 7	Гуре		Obligator	ry □ Elective ⊠	
Period			1 Semest	er	
Rotatio	n		yearly ⊠ per semester □		
Examir	nations				
Scope	and Length of Ex	aminations			
Module	e Responsibility v	vith	Chair of Political Science		
			Chair of Political Sociology		
Prereq	uisites				
Use of	Module		Elective Module MA IRGP		
Conter	it				
The module takes up fundamental and current questions, issues and problems the media and the scientific community concerning <i>Political Norms, Institutions and Behavior</i> and offers students the opportunity to carve out independent problem solving approaches via discussions, independent research and analytical work or refine existing concepts. Students can take up to two ST-course in this field.					

Qualification Objectives

This module enables students to apply their analytical skills and competences to current problems and develop their abilities even further.

Additionally, students will be able to establish a direct link to relevant professional fields or specific research areas.

- Boix, Carles, und Susan Stokes. 2009. *The Oxford Handbook of Comparative Politics*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Cohen, Andrew and Christopher Heath Wellmann. 2014. *Contemporary Debates in Applied Ethics*. New York: Wiley
- Dalton, Russel, und Hans-Dieter Klingemann. 2007. *The Oxford Handbook of Political Behaviour.* Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Selected Topics: Political Norms, Institutions & Behavior	6	3

				zeppelin univ			
	Module 243153-6 Inequality and Justice						
MA	Semester 2/4	3 h/week	6 ECTS Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123				
Teachin	g Methods		Seminar				
Event T	ype		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠			
Period			1 Semest	er			
Rotation	า		yearly ⊠ per semester □				
Examina	ations						
Scope a	nd Length of Ex	aminations					
Module	Responsibility v	vith	Chair of Political Science				
Prerequ	isites						
Use of N	Module		Elective N	Nodule MA IRGP			
Content							
Over the last years the topic of inequality has gained attention in the context of scientific and societal debates. These debates about the increasing gap between the rich and the poor in a society and about different political possibilities to participate and different capabilities in a general sense are taking place in the realm of sociology, philosophy, political science and economics.							
	In the seminar the concept of inequality is discussed under the perspectives of the disciplines of sociology, economics and political philosophy. Also it is examined						

disciplines of sociology, economics and political philosophy. Also it is examined what conditions of inequality constitute violations of concepts of justice.

Specific areas are dealt with, in which problems of inequality and injustice arise. Furthermore the seminar focuses on the causes and consequences of inequality and injustice and political instruments are discussed, which are appropriate to eliminate or mitigate the problems of inequality and injustice.

Qualification Objectives

Students learn to appreciate to what extent and under what circumstances inequality is a problem. They understand the social and economic relations and the analysis and the development of policies dealing with inequality and justice and their effects.

Literature

Thomas Scanlon	(2018):	Why	does	inequality	matter?	Oxford:	Oxford
University Press							

Joseph Stiglitz (2012): Price of Inequality. New York: Norton

Richard Wilkinson und Kate Pickett (2012): The Spirit Level: Why Equality is Better for Everyone. London: Penguin

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Inequality and Justice	6	3

Module 243072-6 Governance & Controlling of Public Sector Organizations						
MA	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs):					
Teachin	g Methods		Seminar	277120		
Event Ty			Obligator	y Elective	\boxtimes	
Period	, , , , ,		1 Semest	<i>'</i>		
Rotation	1		yearly 🗵	per semester	. 🗆	
Examina	ations			eport / Paper		
Scope a	nd Length of Ex	aminations	, , , ,	- 1 1		
-	Responsibility v		Chair of F	ublic Management	t & Public	Policy
Prerequi	•			<u> </u>		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Use of N			Elective N	Nodule MA IRGP		
Content			l			
be realis	sed in a scientific	ally sound r	manner. Th	ciple of "doing goo e theories, concept is and formulation	s and inst	truments
Qualifica	ation Objectives					
The students can discuss the most important theoretical and conceptual foundations of the governance and controlling of public organisations, are capable of applying the theories underlying governance and controlling in a situation-adequate manner for problem analysis and for the formulation of design recommendations, are able to assess the possibilities and adaptation requirements for the context-appropriate use of governance and controlling instruments in public organisations, are able to discuss basic research methods in the field of governance and controlling. Literature Boven, M./Goodin, R./Schillemans, T. (2014): The Oxford Handbook of Public Accountability, Oxford. Lægreid, P./Verhoest, K. (2010): Governance of Public Sector Organizations,						
Н	oundmills.)CSI, IX. (201	O). GOVERN	ance of Fublic Occ	-	
	in the Module		_		ECTS	h/week
C Gover	nance & Contro	ling in Publ	ic Sector O	rganizations	6	3

3113-6 C	omputational Political Science			
3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123		
	Seminar			
	Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠		
	1 Semester			
	yearly ⊠ per semester □			
aminations				
vith	Chair of Political Sociology			
	Chair of Political Science			
	Elective Module MA IRGP			
	•	3 h/week 6 ECTS Seminar Obligator 1 Semeste yearly ⊠ aminations vith Chair of P Chair of P		

The "digital transformation", the increasing importance of (digital) information technology and of digital modes of communication, is a major source of technical, economical, and social innovations. Yet it also poses considerable challenges to society, politics, and policy. This module examines these challenges from a social science perspective. It also provides an overview of the methods and methodologies that are necessary to deal with these new possibilities and challenges in empirical social and political research. One set of methods and methodologies comprises the computer-assisted collection of textual data from the Internet ("web scraping") and the analysis of (usually large) text corpora thus generated, e.g. using topic modelling and algorithms of natural language processing (NLP). Another set of methods comprises the reconstruction and analysis of complex social networks, processes, and organisations using agent-based modelling or non-linear systems modelling. The analysis of social processes based on extensive spatio-temporal event data and behavioural data or the use and further development of computational methods in the construction, estimation, and application of complex statistical and econometrical models are also potential topics of this module.

Qualification Objectives

Students acquire and understanding how computational approaches to social science research questions and to social and political problems differ from traditional approaches and are provided with an overview of the relevant methods and techniques.

- Alvarez, R. Michael. 2016. *Computational Social Science: Discovery and Prediction.* Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- Blätte, Andreas, Joachim Behnke, Kai-Uwe Schnapp und Claudius Wagemann. 2018. *Computational Social Science. Die Analyse von Big Data.* Baden-Baden: Nomos.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Computational Political Science	6	3

				zeppelin univ		
	Module 243114-6 Applied Data Analysis					
MA	Semester 1/3	3 h/week	6 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123		
Teaching	Methods		Seminar			
Event Ty	pe		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠		
Period			1 Semester			
Rotation		yearly ⊠ per semester □				
Examinations						
Scope and Length of Examinations						
Module Responsibility with		Chair of P	Chair of Political Sociology			
Prerequisites						
Use of Module			Elective Module MA IRGP			
Content						
This module is concerned with the practical analysis of research data sets, which may come from academic surveys, such as the <i>German Longitudinal Election Study</i> (GLES), the <i>Eurobarometer</i> , the <i>European Social Survey</i> or the <i>International Social</i>						

This module is concerned with the practical analysis of research data sets, which may come from academic surveys, such as the *German Longitudinal Election Study* (GLES), the *Eurobarometer*, the *European Social Survey* or the *International Social Survey Program* (ISSP), or from other data collections, such as the *Manifesto Project* or the *Chapel Hill Expert Survey* (CHES). Courses in this module will discuss the acquisition of such data sets from scientific data archives, such as *GESIS*, or from data repositories, such as *DataVerse* and *Zenodo*; the preparation of such data sets for data analysis (including the creation of subsets, merging data sets and recoding of data variables); the selection and application of data analysis techniques suitable for answering the research questions selected by participants; and the creation of publication-ready tables and graphics that present the results of the analysis. Data management and analysis as well as the presentation of results are usually done with statistical software (such as *R*). This module thus provides the opportunity to exercise and deepen the skills and techniques acquired the module "Research Design and Methods" in their application to "real world" research data.

Qualification Objectives

After completion of the module students are expected to be able to analyse scientific data sets in order to answer their self-chosen research questions. They are thus able to deal successfully with the empirical aspects of the work on their master thesis.

- Box-Steffensmeier, Janet M., Henry E. Brady and David Collier. 2008. The Oxford Handbook of Political Methodology. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Dalton, Russel, und Hans-Dieter Klingemann. 2007. *The Oxford Handbook of Political Behaviour.* Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Field, Andy, Jeremy Miles und Zoë Field. 2012. Discovering Statistics Using R. London, Thousand Oaks, New Delhi, Singapore: Sage Publications.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C Applied Data Analysis	6	3

	Module 24353 Elinor-Ostrom-Project				
MA	Semester 2/4	2 h/week	18 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123	
Teaching	Teaching Methods		Seminar		
Event Type		Obligatory □ Elective ⊠			
Period		1 Semester			
Rotation		yearly \square per semester $oxtimes$			
Examinations					
Scope and Length of Examinations					
Module Responsibility with		Chair of Political Science			
Prerequisites			·		
Use of Module		Elective Module MA IRGP			

The Module "Elinor-Ostrom-Project" addresses students with a pronounced interest in science and a research-oriented field of work. It offers the opportunity of a supervised and scientifically accompanied realization of a research project at one of our ZU chairs, a center of research, a research cluster or partnership. In connection to the research project, the students will formulate a report in the shape of a written homework or scientific paper. This written composition represents an independent scientific output, that enables the students to apply the scientific methods and findings to a concrete research topic. The mentoring will be provided by the ZU chairs.

Difficulties and advances regarding the project will be discussed in a research colloquium. While the necessary contents and methods will be taught in a seminar.

Qualification Objectives

The students will learn to independently conduct a research project and will be familiarized with advanced knowledge in scientific work.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C 243523 Research Colloquium	3	2
C 123241-44 Advanced Methods	3	2
C 243522 Research Project	15	

	Module 12344 Advanced Methods				
MA	Semester 2/4	2 h/week	18 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123	
Teaching	Methods		Seminar		
Event Type		Obligatory □ Elective ⊠			
Period		1 Semester			
Rotation		yearly □ per semester ⊠			
Examinations					
Scope and Length of Examinations					
Module Responsibility with		Chair of Political Sociology			
Prerequisites		_			
Use of Module		Elective Module MA IRGP			

The module "Advanced Methods "consists of two Advanced Methods workshops, which can be chosen freely, if they have two different topics. In each semester a pool of around eight workshops are offered, which may involve topics such as agent-based modelling, analysis of binary and categorical data, panel data analysis, causal inference, design and application of case studies, discourse analysis, questionnaire design, design of experiments, grounded theory, hermeneutics, content analysis, multilevel analysis, multivariate analysis, network analysis, qualitative comparative analysis (QCA), web scraping, or time series analysis.

Qualification Objectives

After completion of the module students have acquired practical experiences in the use of advanced and innovative methods and are able to critically reflect and assess the application of such methods in the research literature they encounter in their later academic studies and in their work on their master thesis.

Literature

Box-Steffensmeier, Janet M., Henry E. Brady and David Collier. 2008. The Oxford Handbook of Political Methodology. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
C 123241-44 Advanced Methods	3	2
C 123241-44 Advanced Methods	3	2

MASTER PHASE

	Module 55000 Final Module					
MA	Semester 4	3 h/week	24 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 27/123		
Teaching Methods		Seminar				
Event Typ	ре		Obligator	Obligatory ⊠ Elective □		
Period		1 Semester				
Rotation		yearly \square per semester $oximes$				
Examinations						
Scope and Length of Examinations						
Module Responsibility with		Chair of Political Science				
Prerequisites						
Use of Module		Final Module				

Content

The module provides the preparation for the master examination. The students become familiar with the standards of academic work on the master level and learn to present and defend their master thesis. The length of the thesis is determined in coordination with the advisor and comprises usually between 70.000 and 100.000 letters.

Qualification Objectives

The students develop their own research question and answer it by critically reflecting on theories and methods of political and administrative sciences, as well as international relations.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
Master's Thesis	22	
Disputation	2	

ZU|Plus

Mod	lule 11001 W	/orkshop	Fundan	nentals of Entrepreneurship
MA	Semester 1-4	2 h/week	2 ECTS	Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 18/7
Teaching	g Methods		Workshop	
Event Ty	/pe		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠
Period		1 Semester		
Rotation		yearly \square per semester \boxtimes		
Examinations		Active Par	ticipation	
Scope and Length of Examinations				
Module Responsibility with				
Prerequisites				
Use of Module				

Content

The fundamentals of entrepreneurship form a prominent research focus at ZU, especially in the field of social entrepreneurship. Corresponding (student) projects are sustainably supported. The workshop on multi-value entrepreneurship familiarizes students with the background, questions, risks and potentials of start-up. Closely oriented to the chronology of the start-up project, it provides an overview of the necessary steps for planning new business ideas and discusses the theories and concepts of entrepreneurship.

Qualification Objectives

Upon completion of the workshop, students will possess techniques and tools to independently identify and assess a marketable innovation potential and to plan, finance and successfully market their own business ideas.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
Workshop Fundamentals of Entrepreneurship	2	2

MA Semester 1-4 2 h/week 2 ECTS Contact Time / Self Study (in hrs): 18/7 Teaching Methods Workshop Event Type Obligatory □ Elective ⋈ Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly □ per semester ⋈ Examinations Active Participation Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with		Module 11001 Workshop Creativity & Performativity					
Event Type Obligatory □ Elective ⋈ Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly □ per semester ⋈ Examinations Active Participation Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with	MA	Semester 1-4	2 h/week	2 ECTS			
Period 1 Semester Rotation yearly □ per semester ⊠ Examinations Active Participation Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with	Teaching	g Methods		Workshop)		
Rotation yearly □ per semester ⊠ Examinations Active Participation Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with	Event Ty	/pe		Obligator	y □ Elective ⊠		
Examinations Active Participation Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with	Period		1 Semester				
Scope and Length of Examinations Module Responsibility with	Rotation		yearly \square per semester \boxtimes				
Module Responsibility with	Examinations		Active Par	rticipation			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Scope and Length of Examinations						
	Module Responsibility with						
Prerequisites	Prerequisites		_				
Use of Module	Use of Module						

The module focuses on the question of how the new and different comes into the world and how one gains unfamiliar perspectives on the familiar. Students are encouraged to experiment and perform with the possibilities of aesthetic and artistic forms of knowledge and to become creatively active. They learn observation, improvisation and imagination techniques and become familiar with forms of world appropriation that derive from practical, creative action and unfold in the work with their own bodies and senses.

Within the module, different focal points are offered and combined with each other. These range from performative forms of presentation and filmic work, photography and drawing, design to ritual self-techniques of yoga. Practical workshop blocks and a public final presentation structure the program. Students interested in a more intensive exploration of the above topics should take Module 121403 "Creative Performance," which is elective for CCM students and multidisciplinary for students in other programs.

Qualification Objectives

The module aims at sharpening perception and imparts knowledge of alternative forms of knowledge and creativity techniques in the context of university education. Students receive a practical introduction to creative competencies and a sense of the soci8al situatedness of their actions.

Courses in the Module	ECTS	h/week
Workshop Creativity & Performativity	2	2